
  www.greenwoodmn.com

 

 

 
 

 

 
AGENDA 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, January 4, 2017 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
The public is invited to speak when items come up on the agenda (comments are limited to 3 minutes).  
The public may speak regarding other items during Matters from the Floor (see below).  
 

 
7:00pm OATH OF OFFICE: Mayor Deb Kind, Councilmember Kristi Conrad, Councilmember Bill Cook 
 
7:05pm 1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE MEETING AGENDA 
 

7:05pm 2.   CONSENT AGENDA 
Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and are approved through one motion with no discussion by the city council. 
Council members may remove any Consent Agenda item for discussion and separate consideration under Other Business. 
 

A. Approve: 12-07-16 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: 12-22-16 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
C. Approve: November Cash Summary Report 
D. Approve: November Certificates of Deposit Report 
E. Approve: December Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
F. Approve: January Payroll Register 
G. Approve: Res 01-17 Setting City Dates for 2017 
H. Approve: Res 02-17 City Appointments & Assignments for 2017 
I. Approve: Res 04-17 Authorizing 2017-2020 Recycling Grant Agreement with Hennepin County 

 

7:05pm 3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. Comments are limited to 3 
minutes. Typically, the council will not take action on items presented at this time, but will refer items to staff for review, action, 
and / or recommendation for future council action.  

 

7:10pm 4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. Announcement: Greenwood Night at the Old Log Theatre, 7:30pm, Friday 01-20-16 

 

7:10pm 5.   PUBLIC HEARING 
A. None 

 

7:10pm 6.   ACTION RELATED TO PUBLIC HEARING 
A. None 

 

7:10pm 7.   PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS 
A. Consider: Res 05-17 Findings for Variance Request, Roger Champagne, 21595 Minnetonka Blvd 

 

7:10pm 8.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. 1st Reading: Ord 267 Clean Up of City Code Section 910.60 and Summary Res 03-17  
B. Update: Ordinance Regarding Zoning Regulations Based on Lot Size 
C. Consider: Recommendations Regarding Locations of No-Parking Signs 

 

7:30pm 9.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. None 

 

7:30pm 10.  OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None   

 

7:30pm 11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Cook: Planning Commission, Public Works Committee 
B. Fletcher: Lake Mtka Comm Commission, Fire, Administrative Committee 
C. Kind: Police, Administrative Committee, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
D. Quam: Public Works Committee, Minnetonka Community Education  
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  

 

7:50pm 12. ADJOURNMENT  
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda items are considered to be routine and are approved through one motion with no 
discussion by the city council. Council members may remove consent agenda items for further discussion. Removed 
items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
The consent agenda items are included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic version of the 
packet available at www.greenwoodmn.com.  
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



12-07-16 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 1 of 4 

 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, December 7, 2016 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, Rob Roy 
Staff Members Present: None 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the agenda with Quam's request to move item 8C Potential Locations of No-
Parking Signs to 4A(a) to be part of the council’s discussion with Chief Meehan. Second by Roy. Motion 
passed 5-0. 

  
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. Approve: 11-02-16 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approve: 11-15-16 City Council Election Canvassing & Closed Session Minutes 
C. Approve: October Cash Summary Report 
D. Approve: October Certificates of Deposit Report 
E. Approve: November Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
F. Approve: December Payroll Register 

 
Motion by Kind to approve the consent agenda items with Fletcher's request to move item 2G 2017 License 
Applications to 10A Other Business for further discussion. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 

A.  
3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

None. 
 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. Chief Meehan: Police Update and Introduction to Potential Prosecutor Ken Potts 
 

Motion by Kind to direct Chief Meehan to alert rental property owners of police calls to their properties 
when appropriate. Second by Fletcher. Motion passed 5-0.  
 

 (a) 8C Potential Locations of No-Parking Signs 
 

Chief Meehan will recommend which side to post no-parking signs on Sleepy Hollow Road. The public 
works committee will review Minnetonka Blvd by the Villas and Fairview Street between Sleepy 
Hollow Road and the hard curve and make a recommendation at the January council meeting for the 
location of no-parking signs.  
 

  View discussion at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

B. Presentation: Res 44-16 Resolution of Appreciation & Commendation for Councilman Rob Roy 
 

Motion by Cook to approve resolution 44-16, a resolution of appreciation and commendation recognizing 
the contributions of City Councilman Rob Roy. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

View presentation and Councilman Roy’s remarks at LMCC-TV.org. 
 
5.   PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. None. 
 

6. ACTION RELATED TO PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. None. 
 
 



12-07-16 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 2 of 4 

7. PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS 
 

A. None.  
 
8.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. 2nd Reading: Ord 263 Regarding Predatory Offenders and Summary Res 45-16  
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council (1) approves the 2nd reading of ordinance 263 adding ordinance 
code section 925 regarding predatory offenders with the correction to remove the extra “or” in Section 
925.20 subd 5 item 4; (2) approves resolution 45-16 a summary of ordinance 263; and (3) directs the city 
clerk to publish resolution 45-16 in the city’s official newspaper. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
B. Update: Ordinance Regarding Zoning Regulations Based on Lot Size 

 

No council action taken. View discussion at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider: Res 46-16 Final 2017 Tax Levy and Res 47-16 Final 2017 Budget (Opportunity for Public Comment) 
 

Motion by Quam that the city council adopts resolution 46-16 approving the 2017 tax levy in the amount 
of $638,999 to be collected in 2017 and directs the city clerk to send the information to Hennepin County. 
Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

 

Motion by Roy that the city council adopts resolution 47-16 approving the 2017 general fund budget in the 
amount of $783,268. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

B. Consider: Right-of-Way Permit Agreement, Mark & Katherine Krezowski, 5130 Meadville Street 
 

Mark Krezowski, 5130 Meadville St, spoke in favor of granting the permit. He stated the size of his lot makes it 
difficult to story the boatlift and dock parts on the property during the winter months. He also stated that his wife 
has stored a boatlift and dock parts on the right-of-way for 30 years. He also stated that his property was identical 
in size to his neighbor Joe Fronius’ property and wondered why his assessor’s property valuation was more 
[the council advised that spring is the time to appeal property valuations]. 
 

Joe Fronius, 5140 Meadville St, stated that he had the same lakeshore frontage as Krezowski’s frontage and that 
he stores his boatlift and dock parts on his own property during winter months. He also stated that the location of 
trees on the Krezowski's property makes it difficult for them to story their boatlift and dock on their property. He 
stated that he had no objection to the Krezowskis storing their boatlift and dock parts on the city right-of-way. 
 

John Gray, 5170 Meadville Street, stated that the location of the driveway might be a factor in the property values.  
 

Jan Gray, 5170 Meadville Street, asked who came up with the idea of a permit [answer: city clerk], expressed 
concern about a slippery slope and others wanting to store items in the right-of-way, asked how the dollar amount 
was determined [answer: city clerk suggested the $200 fee], asked about insurance coverage [answer: insurance 
listing the city as additionally insured is part of the permit agreement], wondered if the storage of the boatlift and 
dock parts takes away the enjoyment of the view for other people in the neighborhood. 
 

Motion by Cook that the council approves the permit agreement with Mark and Katherine Krezowski 
granting them permission to store a boatlift and dock parts on the southern 10 x 10 foot area of the city 
right-of-way between 5130 and 5120 Meadville Street with the following changes: (1) remove the $200 fee; 
and (2) add language stating this is a one-time permit not to be repeated in future years. Second by 
Fletcher. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
C. Discuss: Report Regarding LRT Trail Crossing at Meadville Street 

The council consensus was for Mayor Kind to contact Three Rivers Park District to express the city 
council’s continuing concern regarding the speed of bikers at the trail crossing and request more 
noticeable stop signs or something (flags, lights, etc) to highlight the existing stop signs. 
 

D. 1st Reading: Ord 266 Clean Up of City Code Section 910.60 Regarding Prohibited Activities Affecting 
Health and / or Property and Summary Res 48-16  

 
Motion by Fletcher to continue this item to the 01-04-17 city council meeting. Second by Quam. Motion 
passed 5-0. 
 
 
 

 



12-07-16 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 3 of 4 

E. Consider: 2016 Budget Line Item Adjustments and Fund Transfers 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council approves the following 2016 fund transfers: 
 

a. $3,600 from 605-49300-721 Marina Fund Transfer  
to 101-39200 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

b. $12,500 from 605-49300-720 Marina Fund Transfer  
to 101-39201 General Fund 

c. $10,090 from 602-43200-720 Sewer Fund Transfer  
to 101-39202 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

d. $2,573 from 502-43200-720 Stormwater Fund Transfer  
to 101-39203 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

e. $20,000 from 101-49000-500 General Fund Bridge Transfer  
to 403-39200 Bridge Fund 

f. $134,000 from 101-43200-500 General Fund Major Road Improvement  
to 404-36230 Road Improvement Fund 

g. $10,000 from 101-49000-439 General Fund Contingency  
to 404-36230 Road Improvement Fund 

 

Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

10.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. A.  Item 2G from Consent Agenda, 2017 License Applications 
B.  

Motion by Fletcher to approve 2017 licenses for the entities listed below contingent upon the city 
receiving applications and fees by 12-31-16: 

 

Commercial Marinas Bean's Greenwood Marina 
 Excelsior Bay Harbor 
 Kreslins’ Marina 
 

Rental Permits David Colwell, 21830 Byron Circle 
 Terry & Jill Nagel, 21885 Byron Circle 
 Sunny Kim, 21380 Excelsior Blvd 
 Mark & Jean Lewry, 21690 Fairview Street 
 David Rubenstein, 21885 Fairview Street 
 Equity Bank, 5085 Greenwood Circle 
 Andrew Althsuser, 5200 Greenwood Circle 
 John Klinkner, 5205 Greenwood Circle 
 Jim Norman, 5370 Manor Road 
 Juliann Schultz, 5470 Manor Road 
 Patty Loftus, 5165 Meadville Street 
 Keith Wilcock, 21260 Minnetonka Blvd 
 

Trash Haulers Allied Waste 
 Aspen Waste 
 Blackowiak Disposal 
 Randy’s Environmental Services 
 Waste Management 

C.  

D. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Cook: Planning Commission, Public Works Committee 
 

No council action taken. View discussion at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

B. Fletcher: Lake Mtka Comm Commission, Fire, Administrative Committee 
 

No council action taken. View discussion at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

C. Kind: Police, Administrative Committee, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
 

No council action taken. View discussion at LMCC-TV.org. 



12-07-16 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 4 of 4 

 
D. Quam: Public Works Committee, Minnetonka Community Education  

 

No council action taken. View discussion at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  
 

No council action taken. View discussion at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Roy to adjourn the meeting at 8:45pm. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting minutes. A video recording was made of the meeting, 
which provides a verbatim account of what transpired. The video recording is available for viewing on LMCC TV channel 8 for 1 month, 
at www.lmcc-tv.org for 1 year, and on DVD at the city office (permanent archive).  



12-22-16 Greenwood Special City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 1 of 1 

 
 
MINUTES 
Greenwood Special City Council Meeting 
 

Thursday, December 22, 2016 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 
 

 Mayor Pro Tem Quam called the meeting to order at 4:35pm. 
Members Present: Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, and Bob Quam 
Others Present: None 
Members Absent: Mayor Kind, Councilmember Roy 

 

Motion by Cook to approve the agenda. Second by Fletcher. Motion passed 3-0. 
  
2.  CONSIDER: Approval of 2017 Gas Station and Tobacco Licenses 
 

Motion by Cook to approve the Minnoco (formerly Greenwood Market) tobacco and gas station licenses for 
2017. Second by Fletcher. Motion passed 3-0. 

 
3.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Cook to adjourn the meeting at 4:45pm. Second by Quam. Motion passed 3-0. 
 

 



M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

Dec 28, 2016  03:21pm 
Check Issue Date(s): 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016  

 
Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

12/16 12/01/2016 12693 199 ELECTRIC PUMP 602-20100 189.92 
12/16 12/28/2016 12694 10 AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BUSINES 101-20100 20.63 
12/16 12/28/2016 12695 738 AVENET WEB SOLUTIONS 101-20100 425.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12696 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 602-20100 6,341.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12697 762 CATALYST GRAPHICS INC 101-20100 88.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12698 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 602-20100 8,641.56 
12/16 12/28/2016 12699 822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 101-20100 155.25 
12/16 12/28/2016 12700 68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 602-20100 44.55 
12/16 12/28/2016 12701 75 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 72.46 
12/16 12/28/2016 12702 766 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 785.11 
12/16 12/28/2016 12703 789 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 50.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12704 861 HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A. 101-20100 191.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12705 850 KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERED 101-20100 385.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12706 99 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 101-20100 1,844.75 
12/16 12/28/2016 12707 105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 602-20100 2,592.38 
12/16 12/28/2016 12708 885 PEMBER COMPANIES INC 602-20100 57,600.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12709 867 RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 101-20100 1,628.25 
12/16 12/28/2016 12710 38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 101-20100 16,149.58 
12/16 12/28/2016 12711 797 TONKA PRINTING COMPANY 101-20100 303.00 
12/16 12/28/2016 12712 145 XCEL ENERGY 602-20100 647.53 

          Totals: 98,154.97 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 28, 2016  03:20pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BUSINES
INV02842715 12/14/201610 AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BU W-2 & 1099 TAX FORMS 20.63 

          Total AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BUSINES 20.63 

AVENET WEB SOLUTIONS
39825 12/07/2016738 AVENET WEB SOLUTIONS Annual web hosting, Mtce, Cust. Support 425.00 

          Total AVENET WEB SOLUTIONS 425.00 

BOLTON & MENK, INC.
0197336 11/30/201651 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 2016 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 56.00 
0197337 11/30/20162016 MISC ENGINEERING 396.00 
0197338 11/30/20162016 SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 4,048.00 
0197339 11/30/20162015 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 668.00 
0197340 11/30/20162016 MISC ENGINEERING 1,173.00 

          Total BOLTON & MENK, INC. 6,341.00 

CATALYST GRAPHICS INC
16788 12/21/2016762 CATALYST GRAPHICS INC CITY NEWSLETTER 88.00 

          Total CATALYST GRAPHICS INC 88.00 

CITY OF DEEPHAVEN
NOV 2016 12/01/20169 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN RENT & EQUIPMENT 487.45 

Postage 52.01 
COPIES 159.40 
SEWER 1,251.72 
SNOW PLOWING/SANDING/SALT 2,290.84 
PARK MAINTENANCE 756.40 
STORM SEWERS 567.30 
Clerk Services 2,829.60 
ZONING 182.50 
ENGRAVED DESK SIGNS (2) 64.34 

          Total CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 8,641.56 

ECM PUBLISHERS INC
440510 12/15/2016822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC LEGAL NOTICE 51.75 
440511 12/15/2016LEGAL NOTICE 103.50 

          Total ECM PUBLISHERS INC 155.25 

ELECTRIC PUMP
0059078 11/02/2016199 ELECTRIC PUMP LIFT STATION REPAIR 189.92 

          Total ELECTRIC PUMP 189.92 

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL
6110409 11/30/201668 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL Gopher State calls 44.55 

          Total GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 44.55 

HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
1000084767 12/01/2016789 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURE PINS PROGRAM 50.00 

113016 11/30/201675 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURE TRUTH IN TAX NOTICES 72.46 
1216-1 12/09/2016766 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURE ELECTION SUPPLIES 250.71 
1216-2 12/12/2016AUTOMARK/M100 MNTNCE 534.40 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 28, 2016  03:20pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

          Total HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 907.57 

HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A.
13300 11/28/2016861 HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A. SO SHORE COMM CNTR 191.00 

          Total HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A. 191.00 

KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERED
GR625-00004 11/30/2016850 KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERE LEGAL SERVICES 385.00 

          Total KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERED 385.00 

LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC
121216 12/12/201699 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DI 2017 MULTIPLE DOCK LICENSE 342.50 

4TH QTR 2016 12/01/20164th Qtr. LMCD Levy 1,502.25 

          Total LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 1,844.75 

METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES
0001061878 12/09/2016105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERV Monthly wastewater Charge 2,592.38 

          Total METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 2,592.38 

PEMBER COMPANIES INC
12/1/16 12/01/2016885 PEMBER COMPANIES INC 2016 SANITARY IMPROVEMENTS 57,600.00 

          Total PEMBER COMPANIES INC 57,600.00 

RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
12/19/16 12/19/2016867 RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SER RECYCLING SERVICES 1,628.25 

          Total RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 1,628.25 

SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT
12 12 16 12/12/201638 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE Hennepin Co. Processing Fees 75.00 

DEC 2016 12/01/2016OPERATING BUDGET EXPENSE 16,074.58 

          Total SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 16,149.58 

TONKA PRINTING COMPANY
4504 12/15/2016797 TONKA PRINTING COMPANY PAPER SUPPLIES 303.00 

          Total TONKA PRINTING COMPANY 303.00 

XCEL ENERGY
112816 11/28/2016145 XCEL ENERGY Sleepy Hollow Road * 9.02 

12 05 16 12/05/2016Street Lights * 394.47 
12 21 16 12/21/2016LIFT STATION #2 36.72 

LIFT STATION #3 47.27 
LIFT STATION #4 35.51 
LIFT STATION #6 77.53 

12 22 16 12/22/2016LIFT STATION #1 47.01 

          Total XCEL ENERGY 647.53 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     3 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016 Dec 28, 2016  03:20pm 
 

Total Paid: 98,154.97 
Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 98,154.97 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 12/02/2016 to 01/01/2017 Dec 28, 2016  01:06pm 
 

Pay Per Check Check Description GL Amount
Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No Account

01/01/17 PC 01/01/17 1011701 CONRAD, KRISTI 39 001-10100 277.05 
01/01/17 PC 01/01/17 1011702 COOK, WILLIAM B. 37 001-10100 277.05 
01/01/17 PC 01/01/17 1011703 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 001-10100 177.05 
01/01/17 PC 01/01/17 1011704 Kind, Debra J. 34 001-10100 415.57 
01/01/17 PC 01/01/17 1011705 Quam, Robert 32 001-10100 277.05 

          Grand Totals: 1,423.77 



Variance with Variance with 
Month 2015 2016 Prior Month Prior Year
January $1,100,038 $1,103,197 -$59,352 $3,159
February $1,125,995 $1,128,257 $25,060 $2,262
March $1,105,199 $1,074,726 -$53,531 -$30,473
April $1,041,296 $1,003,064 -$71,662 -$38,232
May $1 025 022 $968 814 $34 250 $56 208

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

City of Greenwood
Monthly Cash Summary

2015

2016

May $1,025,022 $968,814 -$34,250 -$56,208
June $986,189 $922,082 -$46,732 -$64,107
July $1,234,400 $1,184,900 $262,818 -$49,500
August $1,207,294 $1,095,742 -$89,158 -$111,552
September $1,061,011 $1,044,116 -$51,626 -$16,895
October $845,408 $986,451 -$57,665 $141,043
November $831,317 $948,462 -$37,989 $117,145
December $1,162,549 $0 -$948,462 -$1,162,549

Alerus Bank Checking $15,838
Bridgewater Bank Checking $35,655
Alerus Bank Money Market $253,356
Bridgewater Bank Money Market $173,211
Alerus Bank CD's $205,295
Bridgewater Bank CD's $265,107

$948,462
ALLOCATION BY FUND
General Fund $241,572
Special Project Fund ($5,557)
General Fund Designated for Parks $16,756
Bridge Capital Project Fund $147,098
Road Improvement Fund $100,093
Stormwater Fund $25,031
Sewer Enterprise Fund $349,551
Marina Enterprise Fund $73,918

$948,462



GREENWOOD CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Report Date:  11/30/1611/30/16

Acct # Bank Date Term Maturity Rate Amount
101-10412 Alerus Bank 10/22/15 13 month 11/22/16 0.60% 81,135.72$          
101-10410 Alerus Bank 12/06/15 13 month 01/06/17 0.60% 61,849.99$          
101-10407 Alerus Bank 02/04/16 13 month 03/04/17 0.60% 62,308.85$          

101-10413 Bridgewater Bank 05/11/16 13 month 06/11/17 1.00% 62,013.61$          
101-10408 Bridgewater Bank 07/11/16 13 month 08/11/17 1.00% 60,151.23$          
101-10414 Bridgewater Bank 07/25/16 13 month 08/25/17 1.00% 81,026.94$          
101-10411 Bridgewater Bank 09/08/16 13 month 10/08/17 1.00% 61,915.17$          

TOTAL 470,401.51$        

CITY COUNCIL POLICY: 09-03-14 Motion by Roy to authorize the administrative committee to open CDs with a maximum initial maturity of
25 months with a combined maximum total CD balance of $500,000 at Alerus Bank or Bridgewater Bank. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.

11-02-16 Motion by Fletcher that the city council authorizes an increase from $500,000 to $600,000 for the city's maximum balance of certificate 
of deposit.  Second by Roy.  Motion passed 5-0.



Application Date Sun Sailor                
Publish Date

Planning Commission 
Public Hearing Council Meeting

3rd Wednesday Thurs (13 Days Before 
PC Mtg) 7pm, 3rd Wednesday 7pm, 1st Wednesday

November 16, 2016 December 8, 2016 December 21, 2016 January 4, 2017
December 21, 2016 January 5, 2017 January 18, 2017 February 1, 2017
January 18, 2017 February 2, 2017 February 15, 2017 March 1, 2017
February 15, 2017 March 2, 2017 March 15, 2017 April 5, 2017

March 15, 2017 April 6, 2017 April 19, 2017 May 3, 2017
April 19, 2017 May 4, 2017 May 17, 2017 June 7, 2017
May 17, 2017 June 8, 2017 June 21, 2017 July 5, 2017
June 21, 2017 July 6, 2017 July 19, 2017 August 2, 2017
July 19, 2017 August 3, 2017 August 16, 2017 September 6, 2017

August 16, 2017 September 7, 2017 September 20, 2017 October 4, 2017
September 20, 2017 October 5, 2017 October 18, 2017 November 1, 2017

October 18, 2017 November 2, 2017 November 15, 2017 December 6, 2017
November 15, 2017 December 7, 2017 December 20, 2017 January 3, 2018

Date Time
April 5, 2017 6pm
April 13, 2017 6pm
April 27, 2017 6pm
May 17, 2017 8pm
May 20, 2017 8am

August 2, 2017 6pm
September 6, 2017 6pm
November 1, 2017 6pm
December 6, 2017 7pm

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota, this ___ day of January, 2017.

There were ___ AYES and ___ NAYS.

CITY OF GREENWOOD

By:
Debra J. Kind, Mayor                                              

Attest:
Dana H. Young, City Clerk

During December council meeting

Be it resolved that the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following dates for                                                                                
planning commission meetings, city council meetings, and variance / conditional use permit / subdivision applications:

Planning commission and city council meetings are held in the Deephaven council chambers, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331. Dates may change due to lack of quorums.

Be it resolved that the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following additional dates:

Worksession: Budget & Fees
Worksession: Budget & Fees
Fall Sales Ratio Meeting with Assessors
Budget Public Comment Opportunity

Notes
Before April council meeting
2nd Thursday in April
4th Thursday in April

3rd Saturday in May
3rd Wednesday in May, following PC meeting

Pre-Board Worksession with Assessors

Resolution 01-17
City of Greenwood Dates for 2017

Before August council meeting
Before September council meeting
Before November council meeting

Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting
Subsequent LBAE Meeting

Spring Clean-Up Day
Joint Worksession



 

Resolution 02-17 – City of Greenwood Appointments & Assignments for 2017 
 

Be it resolved that the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following appointments for 01-04-17 through 01-03-18. 
 

OFFICE & DESIGNATIONS 2016 HOLDER 2017 HOLDER 
Mayor Pro-Tem Bob Quam Bob Quam 
Administrative Committee Deb Kind, Tom Fletcher Deb Kind, Tom Fletcher 
Animal Enforcement Officer South Lake Police Department South Lake Police Department 
Assessor Hennepin County Hennepin County 
Attorney Mark Kelly, Bob Vose (alternate) Mark Kelly, Bob Vose (alternate) 
Attorney - Conduit Financing Projects Jennifer Hanson Jennifer Hanson 
Attorney - Prosecutor Greg Keller Ken Potts 
Auditor CliftonLarsonAllen CliftonLarsonAllen 
Bank Signatures Kind, Quam, Courtney Kind, Quam, Courtney 
Building Official Bob Manor Bob Manor 
Clerk Dana Young Dana Young 
Depositories Bridgewater Bank, Beacon Bank Bridgewater Bank, Beacon Bank 
Engineer Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) 

Fire Board Representative – 4th Wed (Jan, Mar, May, Jul, Sep, Nov) Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam (alt.), 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam (alt.) 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Forester / Certified Tree Inspector Manuel Jordan  Manuel Jordan  
Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission (LMCC) Representative 
2 reps (1 elected official), meets 2nd Thurs (Feb, Apr, May, Jul, Aug, Oct, Dec) 

Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind, 
Rob Roy (alternate) 

Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind, 
Rob Roy (alternate) 

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Rep – 2nd and 4th Wed Rob Roy (1/31/17)  Bill Cook (3yr term expires 1/31/20)  
Marina Clerk Dana Young Dana Young 
Minnetonka Community Education (MCE) Representative – 4th Mon  Bob Quam Bob Quam 

Newspapers 
Sun-Sailor 
Finance & Commerce (alternate) 
Star Tribune (alternate) 

Sun-Sailor 
Finance & Commerce (alternate) 
Star Tribune (alternate) 

Planning Commissioners and City Council Liaison – 3rd Wed  
 

A-1 Douglas Reeder (8/11-3/18) A-1 Douglas Reeder (8/11-3/18) 
A-2 Lake Bechtell (5/14-3/18) A-2 Lake Bechtell (5/14-3/18) 
A-3 Fiona Sayer (8/14-3/18) A-3 Fiona Sayer (8/14-3/18) 
B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/17) B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/17) 
B-2 Kristi Conrad (10/11-3/17) B-2 Jennifer Gallagher (9/16-3/17) 
Alt-1 Jennifer Gallagher (9/16-3/18) Alt-1 David Steingas (10/16-3/18) 
Alt-2 David Steingas (10/16-3/17) Alt-2 Vacant (___-3/17) 
Alt-3 Bill Cook (council liaison) Alt-3 Kristi Conrad (council liaison) 

Public Safety City Administrator Representative (police and fire) Dana Young Dana Young 
Public Works Committee (roads, sewer, stormwater, etc.) Bob Quam, Bill Cook Bob Quam, Bill Cook 
Responsible Authority (Govt. Data Practices Act) Dana Young Dana Young 
St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District Ex-Officio Director  Rob Roy 
South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) Coordinating 
Committee Representative (must be mayor, meets quarterly) Deb Kind, Bob Quam (alternate) Deb Kind, Bob Quam (alternate) 

Treasurer Mary Courtney Mary Courtney 
Utility Billing Clerk Deborah Hicks Deborah Hicks 
Weed Inspector (must be mayor), Assistant Weed Inspector Deb Kind, Assistant John Menzel Deb Kind, Assistant John Menzel 
Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney Dale Cooney 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA that any and all commissioners, appointees, 
representatives, delegates, or other non-elected officials of the city shall hold their official status or membership on a basis subject to resolution, 
subject to reconsideration, and / or removal at the insistence of the city council. This resolution is enacted pursuant to the codes of the city. 
 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _______, 2017. 
 

There were ___ AYES and ___ NAYS 
 

By: _____________________________________    Attest: _____________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor, City of Greenwood  Dana H. Young, City Clerk, City of Greenwood 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

 

 

 
 
 
City of Greenwood  
Resolution 04-17 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ENTERING INTO A 2017-2020 RESIDENTIAL RECYLCING GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board has determined that curbside collection of recyclables and organics from Hennepin County 
residents is an effective strategy to reduce reliance on landfills, prevent pollution, conserve natural resources and energy, 
improve public health, support the economy, and reduce greenhouse gases; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board has adopted the goals established in State Statute and by the Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency in its Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Policy Plan and developed a Residential Recycling Funding Policy to 
help reach a 75% recycling rate by 2030; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Hennepin County Board of Commissioners took action on November 29, 2016 to approve the Hennepin 
County Recycling Funding Policy for the period of January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2020 and authorized grant funding for 
municipal recycling programs consistent with said policy; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Greenwood operates a municipal curbside residential curbside recycling program and other waste 
reduction and recycling activities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Greenwood city council authorizes entering into the 2017-2020 
Hennepin County Residential Recycling Grant Agreement and that the Greenwood city council hereby authorizes the city 
clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the city of Greenwood. 
 
ADOPTED by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this __ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor        Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 



 

 

  

  

Hennepin County Residential 
Recycling Funding Policy 

  
  
  
  

January 1, 2017 – December 31, 2020  
  
  

  
  

Board Adopted:  November 29, 2016  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  



1  
  

I. Policy Description  
  

A. Background  
  
The Hennepin County Board of Commissioners has determined that curbside collection of 
recyclables and organics from Hennepin County residents is an effective strategy to reduce 
reliance on landfills, prevent pollution, conserve natural resources and energy, improve public 
health, support the economy, and reduce greenhouse gases. Therefore, the county adopted the 
goals established in State Statute and by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) in its 
Metropolitan Solid Waste Management Policy Plan and developed a Residential Recycling 
Funding Policy to help reach a 75% recycling rate by 2030.  
  
The county will distribute all Select Committee on Recycling and the Environment (SCORE) funds 
received from the state to cities for curbside collection of residential recyclables and organics. If 
cities form a joint powers organization responsible for managing a comprehensive recycling and 
waste education system for the residents of those cities, the county will distribute recycling and 
organics grants to that organization. Cities are expected to fulfill the conditions of the policy.  
  

B. Term of the Policy  
  
Hennepin County is committed to implement this policy and continue distributing all SCORE 
funds received from the state for the purpose of funding curbside residential recycling and 
organics programs from January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2020. The county may revise this 
policy if it determines changes are needed to assure compliance with state law and MPCA goals 
established for metropolitan counties. In the event that SCORE funds are eliminated from the 
state budget or significantly reduced, the county will consult with municipalities at that time and 
develop a subsequent recommendation to the board on continuation of this policy and future 
funding of curbside recycling and organics programs.  
  

C. Grant Agreements  
  
Each municipality seeking funding under the terms of the Residential Recycling Funding Policy 
must enter into a recycling grant agreement with the county for a term concurrent with the 
expiration of this policy, December 31, 2020. The grant agreement must be accompanied by a 
resolution authorizing the city to enter into such an agreement.  
  

D. Fund Distribution  
  
The county will distribute to Hennepin County municipalities 100% of SCORE funds that the 
county receives from the state. SCORE funds will be dedicated to two different purposes: 1) 



2  
  

curbside recycling and 2) curbside organics recycling. SCORE funds are based on revenue 
received by the State of Minnesota from the solid waste management (SWM) tax on garbage 
services. SCORE funds are subject to change based on the SWM tax revenue received by the 
state and funds allocated by the legislature. Funds distributed to municipalities for the current 
calendar year will be based on SCORE funds received by the county in the state’s corresponding 
fiscal year.  
  
   

II. Recycling  
  

A. Allocation of Funds  
  
The following formula will be utilized to determine a city’s recycling SCORE grant each year.  
  
Percent of SCORE funds allocated to curbside recycling:  
  

2017 80%  
2018 70%  
2019 60%  
2020 50%  

  
City recycling grant calculation:  

 
Number of households with  

curbside recycling in city 
------------------------------- 
Total number of households 

with curbside recycling in 
county 

 
 

x 
 

 
Total SCORE 

Funds available 
for recycling 

 
 

= 

 
Recycling grant 

amount available 
to the city 

  
Eligible residential households are defined as single family through eight-plex residential 
buildings or other residential buildings where each housing unit sets out its own recycling 
container for curbside collection. The number of eligible households will be determined by 
counting the number of eligible households on January 1 of each funding year. The city will 
report the number in its application for funding.  
 
B. Application for Funding  
  
Each municipality must complete an annual grant application by February 15 to receive funding 
for that year. The application consists of a web-based report and a planning document provided 
by the county. The web-based report asks for contract, program, tonnage, and financial 



3  
  

information. The participation rate for the curbside recycling program must also be included in 
the web-based report. The municipality must calculate its participation rate during the month of 
October. The methodology for measuring participation must be provided to the county upon 
request. The planning document asks for a description of activities the city will implement to 
increase recycling and make progress toward county objectives.  
  

C. Use of Funds  
  
The following requirements apply to the use of recycling funds:  
  

1. All grant funds accepted from the county must be used for waste reduction and recycling 
capital and operating expenses in the year granted. The county will not reimburse any 
funds in excess of actual expenses.  

  
2. A municipality or joint powers organization may not charge its residents through 

property tax, utility fees, or any other method for the portion of its recycling program 
costs that are funded by county grant funds.  

  
3. Municipalities must establish a separate accounting mechanism, such as a project 

number, activity number, or fund that will separate recycling revenues and expenditures 
from other municipal activities, including solid waste and yard waste activities.  

  
4. Recycling and waste reduction activities, revenues, and expenditures are subject to audit.  

  
5. Municipalities that do not contract for curbside recycling services will receive grant funds 

provided that at least 90% of the grant funds are credited back to residents and the city 
meets all minimum program requirements. The additional 10% may be used for 
municipal administrative and promotional expenses.  

 
D. City Requirements  
  

1. Materials Accepted  
  
At a minimum, the following materials must be collected curbside:  
  

• Metal food and beverage cans;   
• Glass food and beverage containers;   
• Cardboard boxes;   
• Newspaper and inserts;   
• Mail, office and school papers;  



4  
  

• Cereal, cracker, pasta, cake mix, shoe, gift, and electronics boxes;   
• Boxes from toothpaste, medications and other toiletries;   
• Magazines and catalogs;   
• Aseptic and gable-topped containers; and   
• Plastic bottles and containers, #1 – Polyethylene Terephthalate (PET, PETE), #2 High 

Density Polyethylene (HDPE), #4 – Low Density Polyethylene (LDPE) and #5 – 
Polypropylene (PP) plastic bottles, except those that previously contained hazardous 
materials or motor oil.  

  
The county may add materials to this list and require municipalities to begin collection within 
one year of receiving notification from the county. Municipalities will notify the county if 
materials not found on this list will be collected.   

  

2. Education and Outreach  
  
The partnership between the county and municipalities has been highly effective in 
educating residents and motivating behavior change. In order to continue this partnership 
and increase these efforts, program activities of municipalities must be coordinated with 
county and regional efforts. Municipalities must adhere to the following requirements:  

  
a. Use county terminology when describing recycling guidelines, including the 

description of materials accepted and not accepted, preparation guidelines, and 
promotional materials;  

  
b. Use images provided by the county or the Solid Waste Management Coordinating 

Board (SWMCB) if using images of recyclables;  
  

c. Provide recycling information on the city’s website, including materials accepted and 
not accepted, a recycling calendar, and links to county resources;  

  
d. Mail a recycling guide to residents each year using a template developed jointly with 

the county. The county will design and print the guide. If a municipality does not use 
the template produced by the county, the municipality may develop its own guide at 
the municipality’s expense, but it must be approved by the county. If the municipality 
relies on the hauler to provide the recycling guide, this guide requires approval by 
the county.  

  
e. Complete two educational activities from a menu of options developed by the 

county.  
  
 
 



5  
  

Any print material that communicates residential recycling guidelines that were not provided 
by the county template will require county approval. This does not apply to waste reduction 
and reuse, articles on recycling that do not include guidelines, or social media posts. The 
county will respond within five business days to any communication piece submitted.  

  

3. Recycling Performance  
  
On an annual basis, municipal recycling programs must demonstrate that a reasonable effort 
has been made to maintain and increase the pounds of recyclables per household collected 
from their residential recycling programs.  

  
If a municipality does not demonstrate measureable progress, a recycling improvement plan 
must be submitted by the municipality within 90 days of being notified by the county. The 
recycling improvement plan must be negotiated with the county and specify the efforts that 
will be undertaken by the municipality to improve its recycling program to yield the results 
necessary to achieve county objectives.  

  
In cooperation with the county, the municipality may be required to participate in waste and 
recycling sorts to identify recovery levels of various recyclables in its community. Based on 
the results of the study, the county and municipality will collaborate to increase the recovery 
of select recyclable materials being discarded in significant quantities.  

 
E. Grant Payments  
  
The county will make two equal payments to the municipality. One payment will be made after 
the county receives the application, which consists of the web-based report and the planning 
document. A second payment will be made after basic program requirements, education and 
outreach requirements, and recycling performance have been confirmed and approved. If the 
municipality meets the county requirements, both payments will be made during the same 
calendar year. Funding will be withheld until the municipality meets the requirements of this 
policy.  

 
III. Organics Recycling  
  

A. Allocation of Funds  
  
The following formula will be utilized to determine a city’s organics recycling SCORE grant each 
year: 
  
 



6  
  

Percent of SCORE funds allocated to curbside organics recycling:  
  

2017    20%  
2018    30%  
2019    40%  
2020    50%  

  
City organics recycling grant calculation:  
  

 Number of households with  
curbside organics in city  

---------------------------------  
Total number of households 

with curbside organics in  
county  

  
  
x  
  

 
Total SCORE 

funds available for 
organics 

 
 

= 

 
Organics grant 

amount available 
to the city 

  
If the formula above results in cities receiving grants where the dollar amount per participating 
household is greater than $25 per year, then a cap will apply. The funding cap per participating 
household is $25 per year. The most the county will grant a city is $25 per participating 
household per year. If funds are left over because of the cap, those funds will carry over into the 
following year’s SCORE funds.  
  
Eligible residential households are defined as single family through eight-plex residential 
buildings or other residential buildings where the household is signed up for organics service 
and the household sets out its own container with organics for curbside collection. The number 
of eligible households will be determined by counting the number of eligible households on 
September 1 of each funding year. The city will report the number in the application for funding.  
  

B. Application for Funds  
  
Each municipality must complete an annual application provided by the county by September 1 
to receive funding. As a part of the application, a city must submit the number of households 
signed up for and receiving curbside organics service.  
  

C. Use of Funds  
  
The grant funds may be used for program expenses, including the following:  

• Discount to new customers  
• Discount to existing customers  
• Referral incentives  
• City contract costs  



7  
  

• Education and outreach  
• Compostable bags  
• Kitchen containers  
• Carts  

  
Program administration is not an eligible expense. Yard waste expenses are not eligible. If 
organics are co-collected with other waste, the organics expenses must be tracked separately. If 
a city passes funds through to a hauler, 100% of those funds must be credited to residents’ bills.  
  
In addition, the following requirements apply:  

• All grant funds must be used during the term of the agreement. Funds not spent must be 
returned to the county.  

• Funds must be expended on eligible activities per Minnesota State Statute 115A.557.  
• A municipality or joint powers organization may not charge its residents through 

property tax, utility fees, or any other method for the portion of its organics program 
costs that are funded by county grant funds.  

• Municipalities must account for organics expenditures separately upon request by the 
county. Expenditures are subject to audit.  

 
D. Education and Outreach Requirements  
  
The partnership between the county and municipalities has been highly effective in educating 
residents and motivating behavior change. In order to continue this partnership and increase 
these efforts, program activities of municipalities must be coordinated with county and regional 
efforts. The following requirements apply:  

  
1. Use county terminology when describing organics recycling guidelines, including the 

description of materials accepted and not accepted, preparation guidelines, and 
promotional materials;  

  
2. Use images provided by the county or the SWMCB if using images of organic materials;  

  
3. Provide organics recycling information on the city’s website, including material accepted 

and not accepted, service options, and links to county resources;  
  

4. Work with the county to develop promotional resources to increase participation.  
 

 



8  
  

 
E. Reporting  
  
A report on the city’s organics program must be submitted electronically to the county by 
February 15 following each year. The report must include, but is not limited to, the following:  
  
Basic Program Information  

• Hauler(s)  
• Collection method  
• Where organics were delivered to and processed 
• Is service opt-in or opt-out  
• Cost of service to residents; contract cost for city  
• How the service was billed  
• Items included in service, such as curbside collection, cart, compostable bags, etc.  

  
Results  

• Tons  
• Number of households signed up  
• Average pounds per household per year  
• Participation (set-out rate on pickup day)  
• Program costs  
• How funds were used  

  

F. Grant Payment  
  
The county will make one organics grant payment to a municipality each year. The payment will 
be made after the county receives the application and confirms that the municipality meets the 
requirements of this policy.  
  































  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 7A 

Agenda Date: 01-04-17 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider: Res 05-17 Findings for Variance Request, Roger Champagne, 21595 Minnetonka Blvd 
 
Summary:	Copies of the application materials and staff report are attached reference. Notice of the public hearing was 
published in the Sun-Sailor newspaper on 12-08-16. The planning commission held a public hearing at their 12-21-16, 
meeting. The planning commission considered public comment, applicant’s comments, application materials, and staff 
reports when making their recommendation (see planning commission action below). The city council must address the 
practical difficulty standards outlined in city code section 1155.10 (see the draft findings and potential motions at the 
bottom of this memo).  
 
Planning Commission Action: Commissioner Steingas motioned to recommend approval of the variance request of 
Roger Champagne to exceed the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint in order to build a new garage at 
21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, as presented, based on the recommendation, findings, and conditions of staff. Motion was 
seconded by Reeder. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Key Dates:   
Application complete:    December 2, 2016 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  December 8, 2016 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  December 21, 2016 
City Council Consideration:   January 4, 2017 
60-Day Deadline:    January 31, 2017 
120-Day Deadline:    April 1, 2017 
 
Council Action: The city council must take action by 01-31-17 unless the council decides to exercise the city’s option to 
take another 60 days to consider the request. Suggested motions … 
 
1. I move the city council adopts resolution 05-17 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the variance application of 

Roger Champagne, 21595 Minnetonka Blvd as written. I further move that the council directs the city clerk to mail a 
copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the 
property file.  

 
2. I move the city council adopts resolution 05-17 laying out the findings of fact APPROVING the variance application of 

Roger Champagne, 21595 Minnetonka Blvd with the following revisions: ________________.  
I further move that the council directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and 
place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file.  
 

3. I move the city council directs city staff to exercise the city’s option to take 60 additional days to process the variance 
application of Roger Champagne, 21595 Minnetonka Blvd by mailing written notice and placing an Affidavit of Mailing 
in the property file. The written notice shall state the reason for the extension is: __________.  

 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

STAFF REPORT 
Agenda Date: 01-04-17 

Prepared by Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney 
 
 

 
Agenda Item: Consider variance request of Roger Champagne, property owner, to exceed the maximum 
permitted accessory structure footprint in order to build a new garage at 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard. 
 
Summary:		Roger Champagne is requesting a variance in order to build a new garage in place of his existing non-
conforming detached garage. The existing garage is non-conforming in terms of rear yard setbacks. The proposed garage 
would be conforming in terms of setbacks, but would exceed the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 150 
square feet. Mr. Champagne would like to use the garage for boat and vehicle storage. 
 
Variance Request: Section 1120.20 Subd. 2(c) of the Greenwood Ordinance Codes states that primary accessory 
structures have a maximum combined floor space of 1,000 square feet and in no event shall the accessory structures of 
private garage, tool house shed, and similar storage buildings combined exceed 60% of the total at-grade, main floor 
square footage of the principal structure. 
 

The applicant’s proposed garage would be 676 square feet, which is under the 1,000 square foot limit, but exceeds 60% 
of the main floor square footage of the principal structure. The principal structure has an 876 square foot footprint, which 
would result in a maximum principal accessory structure footprint of 526 square feet. There are no other accessory 
structures on the property. 
 

The proposed garage would be compliant for a principal structure with a main floor footprint of 1,126 square feet. The 
applicant’s property size is 19,545 square feet in size, and the maximum allowable building volume for the property is 
84,090. The proposed garage would bring the building volume on the property to 25,890 cubic feet (according to the 
applicant) which is 31% of the maximum building volume. 
 

Staff recognizes the city’s desire to limit unreasonably sized accessory structures, particularly on some of the smaller, 
substandard lots within the city. However, in this instance, the applicant is being penalized for having a modest sized 
house on a relatively large lot. The property could easily support a significantly larger house, with a substantially 
increased building volume. The proposal would remove a non-conforming garage (in terms of setbacks) and replace it 
with, what amounts to, a standard detached two-car garage. In the context of the property size, the existing non-
conforming garage, and the allowable building volume, staff believes the proposal is a reasonable request. 
 
Other Zoning Considerations:  
 

Grading/Drainage: The survey does not provide elevations, but staff conducted a site visit with the City Engineer and 
identified no grading or drainage concerns. The area is very flat and no grading will be required. 
 

Trees: No significant trees will be removed as a part of this project. Based on the lot size, the applicant is entitled to 
remove two significant trees per year without a variance. 
 

Impervious Surface: The property will expand its impervious area by 433 square feet, bringing the property from 13.24% 
impervious to 15.47% impervious. In addition to the garage itself, the applicant proposes a driveway apron for the 
structure. No additional driveway area is proposed for the structure. Section 1140.17 of the City Zoning Code requires 
stormwater mitigation for any increased impervious surface coverage of 200 square feet or more from existing conditions 
that does not drain toward a naturally occurring water feature. Since runoff from the property does not drain toward a 
naturally occurring water feature (lake, river, wetland, etc.) without impacting the neighboring property, permanent 
stormwater management practices for the expanded impervious area should be provided per the performance criteria in 
Section 1140.17 Subd. 3 of the City’s Ordinance Code. 
 
Staff Recommendation for Variance Request: Staff recommends approval of the request Roger Champagne, property 
owner, to exceed the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 150 square feet in conjunction with the 
construction of a new garage at 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, as presented:  
 

Staff findings, based on the variance practical difficulty standards found in city code section 1155.10:  
 

1. The purpose and intent of this ordinance is to provide a use zone for low-density single-family dwellings that will 
be exclusive of other types of use for the purpose of creating a quality semi-estate district. The	proposal is not in 
conflict with	city’s desire to limit unreasonably sized accessory structures, particularly on smaller, substandard lots  
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

within the city. The proposal maintains the character of the district and the proposed structure is in scale with the 
property. The proposal would also remove an existing non-conforming structure. 

 

2. The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan’s guiding use for the subject property in 
the applicable zoning because the character of the proposed use is consistent with the applicable zoning. 

 

3. Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because: the accessory structure is well within the 
scale of the property, the allowable building volume for the property, and all other zoning restrictions. 
 

4. The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because: the house is undersized for the lot, as evidenced by being well below the allowable building 
volume for the property. In this particular case, the property owner is penalized for having a modest house 
footprint relative to the overall lot size. 

 

5. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed accessory 
structure would remain consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding properties. 

 

6. The variance, if granted, will not: 
a. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
b. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
c. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
d. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 

And subject to the following conditions: 
(a) Per Section 1140.17 of the City Zoning Code, permanent stormwater management practices shall be 

provided to offset the additional impervious surface area. 
(b) The required stormwater management practices meet the requirements and specifications of the city 

engineer. 
(c) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted 

plans. 
(d) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles 

and proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 
 
Planning Commission Action: The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their December 21 meeting. 
Commissioner Steingas motioned to recommend approval of the variance request of Roger Champagne to exceed the 
maximum permitted accessory structure footprint in order to build a new garage at 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, as 
presented, based on the recommendation, findings, and conditions of staff. Motion was seconded by Reeder. Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 
KEY DATES: 
Application complete:    December 2, 2016 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  December 8, 2016 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  December 21, 2016 
City Council Consideration:   January 4, 2017 
60-Day Deadline:    January 31, 2017 
120-Day Deadline:    April 1, 2017 
 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing).  

















 

Greenwood Resolution 05-17   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO 05-17 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
APPROVING  

 
IN RE: The application of Roger Champagne, 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard for a variance  

from Greenwood ordinance code section 1120.20 Subd. 2(c) to exceed the maximum permitted  
accessory structure footprint in order to build a new garage. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
WHEREAS, Roger Champagne is the owner of property commonly known as 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, 
Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-31-0049) being real property in Hennepin County, Minnesota and legally described 
as follows: 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, application was made for a variance to section 1120.20 Subd. 2(c) to permit construction of a garage that 
exceeds the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 150 feet; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on December 21, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-31-
0049) is a single-family lot of record located within the R-1A district. 

 
2. The applicant proposes to construct a garage that exceeds the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 

150 feet.  
 
Greenwood ordinance section 1120.20 Subd. 2(c) states that primary accessory structures in the district shall “have a 
maximum combined floor space of all primary accessory structures on the lot of 1,000 square feet and in no event 
shall the accessory structures of private garage, tool house shed, and similar storage buildings combined exceed 60% 
of the total at-grade, main floor square footage of the principal structure.” 

 
The main floor square footage of the principal structure at 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard is 876 square feet, and 60% 
of that footprint is equal to 526 square feet. The applicant is proposing a garage footprint of 676 square feet, which 
exceeds the primary accessory structure limit by 150 feet. There are no other accessory structures on the property. 
 

3. The proposed garage would be compliant for a principal structure with a main floor footprint of 1,126 square feet. The 



 

Greenwood Resolution 05-17   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

applicant’s property size is 19,545 square feet in size, and the maximum allowable building volume for the property is 
84,090. The proposed garage would bring the building volume on the property to 25,890 cubic feet which is 31% of 
the maximum building volume. 
 

4. The applicant has a modest sized house on a relatively large lot. The property could easily support a significantly 
larger house, with a substantially increased building volume. The proposal would remove a non-conforming garage (in 
terms of setbacks) and replace it with a standard detached two-car garage. In the context of the property size, the 
existing non-conforming garage, and the allowable building volume the proposal is a reasonable request. 
 

5. Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5 & 6 states: 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 
 

(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 
ordinance; 

(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 
Subd. 6. Practical Difficulties Considerations. When determining reasonable manner or essential character, the board 
will consider, but will not be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to 

the intent of this ordinance. 
 

6. The applicant asserts that the proposed variance request complies with the practical difficulties standards in 
Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

7. The planning commission discussed the variance request and on a 4-0 vote recommended the council accept the 
recommendation and findings of staff to approve the application of Roger Champagne for a variance to exceed the 
maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 150 feet for the property located 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, 
as presented. The proposal meets the practical difficulties standards outlined in section 1155.10(4) in that: 
 
a) The variance, if granted, will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance because 
the proposal is not in conflict with city’s desire to limit unreasonably sized accessory structures, particularly on 
smaller, substandard lots within the city. The proposal maintains the character of the district and the proposed 
structure is in scale with the property. The proposal would also remove an existing non-conforming structure. 
 
b) The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan’s guiding use for the subject property in the 
applicable zoning because of the character of the proposed use is consistent with the applicable zoning. 
 
c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because: the accessory structure is well within the 
scale of the property, the allowable building volume for the property, and all other zoning restrictions. 
 
d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because the house is undersized for the lot, as evidenced by being well below the allowable building 
volume for the property. In this particular case, the property owner is penalized for having a modest house footprint 



 

Greenwood Resolution 05-17   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

relative to the overall lot size. 
 
e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed accessory 
structure would remain consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding properties. 
 

8. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that variance request: 
(a) Complies with the practical difficulties standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

9. And the city council has determined that the following conditions should be imposed on any variance grant: 
(a) Per Section 1140.17 of the City Zoning Code, permanent stormwater management practices shall be provided to 

offset the additional impervious surface area. 
(b)   The required stormwater management practices meet the requirements and specifications of the city engineer. 
(c) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(d) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 

proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 
 

10. Subject to the stated conditions, the variance, if granted, will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of the zoning 
ordinance and may be granted. 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 1155.10 necessary for the 
grant of a variance and therefore: 
 
A.   A variance to section 1120.20 Subd. 2(c) to exceed the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 150 feet 

should be granted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments: 
 
That the application of Roger Champagne, 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. PID No. 
26-117-23-31-0049) for: 
 
A.  A variance to section 1120.20 Subd. 2(c) to exceed the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 150 feet 

is APPROVED with the following conditions:  
 

(a) Per Section 1140.17 of the City Zoning Code, permanent stormwater management practices shall be provided to 
offset the additional impervious surface area. 

(b) The required stormwater management practices meet the requirements and specifications of the city engineer. 
(c) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(d) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 

proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 
 

PASSED this 4th day of January, 2017 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8A 

Agenda Date: 01-04-17 

Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Ord 267 Clean Up of City Code Section 910.60 and Summary Res 03-17 
 
Summary: The city received a complaint about a “Bagster” being out all summer / fall. To address Bagsters, the city 
currently relies on the below ordinance which prohibits the accumulation of discarded objects ...  
 

(e) Accumulation of manure, refuse, abandoned, discarded or unused objects or equipment such as non-
operating vehicles of all kinds, furniture, appliances, trash, debris, junk, containers, machinery, implements, 
equipment which is no longer safely useable for the purpose for which they were manufactured, garbage (except 
in authorized container), ashes, or any other foul or unhealthy material. 

 

However, the city has no ordinance that allows temporary storage areas / containers or large garbage containers related 
to clean-up projects or small home improvement projects. Therefore, the city council may want to consider amending our 
ordinance to address temporary outdoor storage areas, storage containers, and large garbage containers.  
 

Deephaven recently approved their nuisance ordinance to address Bagsters and other temporary large storage 
containers ... 
 

Large garbage containers in excess of a standard 96-gallon refuse container must be kept clean, covered, and 
must be immediately emptied whenever it becomes full. Large garbage containers needed for construction 
projects can be stored on-site until the Zoning Coordinator determines it is no longer necessary to dispose of 
construction debris. Large storage areas cannot be created or maintained on a residential property unless 
reviewed and approved by the Zoning Coordinator. All other large garbage containers cannot be stored outside 
on residential property for more than sixty (60) days over a twelve (12) month period. 

 

At the 12-07-16 meeting, the city council discussed the proposed ordinance 267 that included language similar to 
Deephaven's language and decided to continue the discussion to the 01-04-17 council meeting. For the council's 
consideration, attached are the updates of ordinance 267 and resolution 03-17 that include revisions based on the  
12-07-16 discussion.  
 
Timeline: 
01-04-17  City council considers 1st reading of the ordinance (may make revisions / may waive 2nd reading). 
01-05-17 If the 2nd reading is waived, the ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
01-12-17  If the 2nd reading is waived, the ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
02-01-17  City council considers 2nd reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
02-02-17 The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
02-09-17 The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 267 cleaning up ordinance code section 910.60 
as written / as amended; (2) waives the 2nd reading; (3) approves resolution 03-17 a summary of ordinance 267; 
and (4) directs staff to publish resolution 03-17 in the city’s official newspaper. 

2. I move the city council (1) approves the 1st reading of ordinance 267 cleaning up ordinance code section 910.60 
as written / as amended; and (2) directs the ordinance be placed on the next city council agenda for a 2nd 
reading. 

3. Do nothing (maintain current ordinance) or other motion ??? 
 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading. There 
may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. The 2nd reading may be waived by a unanimous vote of city council members present at the 
meeting. 4/5ths vote is required for publishing a summary of an ordinance. Ordinances go into effect once they are published in the city’s official 
newspaper. The planning commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any changes to the zoning code chapter 
11. A public hearing, typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11. 
 



DRAFT 12-27-16 Greenwood Ordinance 267   |   Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 267 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
TO CLEAN UP GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 910.60 REGARDING  

PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES AFFECTING HEALTH AND / OR PROPERTY 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 910.60 is amended to read as follows:  

“Section 910.60. Prohibited Activities Affecting Health and / or Property.  
 

Subd. 1. The following are hereby declared to be nuisances affecting health and / or property: 
 

(a)  Exposed accumulation of decayed or unwholesome food or vegetable matter. 
(b)  All diseased animals running at large. 
(c)  All ponds or pools of stagnant water. 
(d)  Carcasses of animals not buried or destroyed within 24 hours after death. 
(e)  Accumulation of manure, refuse, abandoned, discarded or unused objects or equipment such as non-operating 

vehicles of all kinds, furniture, appliances, trash, debris, junk, containers, machinery, implements, equipment which is 
no longer safely useable for the purpose for which they were manufactured, garbage (except in authorized container), 
ashes, or any other foul or unhealthy material. 

(f)  Brush piles, compost piles, and other piles of yard wastes or clippings unless they are located in side or rear yards at 
least 5 feet from the property line. No brush piles, compost piles, or other piles of yard wastes or clippings are allowed 
in front yards. 

(g)  Privy vaults and garbage cans which are not rodent-free or fly-tight, or which are so maintained as to constitute a 
health hazard or to emit foul and disagreeable odors. 

(g)  Property owners engaging in clean-up projects or small construction projects that are not regulated by the 
construction site management ordinance (section 305) may maintain outdoor storage areas, outdoor garbage areas, 
large storage containers, and / or large garbage containers on site until the city clerk determines the areas and / or 
containers are no longer necessary. The storage / garbage areas and containers must be covered when not in use 
and containers must be emptied whenever they become full. 

(h)  The pollution of any public well or cistern, stream or lake, canal or body of water by sewage, industrial waste, or other 
substances. 

(i)  All Minnesota state prohibited noxious weeds and other rank growths of vegetation upon public or private property.  
(j)  Dense smoke, noxious fumes, gas, soot, or cinders in unreasonable quantities. 
(k)  All public exposure of people having a contagious disease. 
(l)  Any offensive trade or business as defined by statute not operating under local license. 
(m) No person, firm or corporation shall negligently or carelessly set on fire or cause to be set on fire any combustible 

material whether on their own land or not whereby the property of another shall be endangered nor shall any person, 
firm or corporation negligently allow any fire upon their own land to extend beyond the limits thereof. Except that 
burning under proper supervision and by city permit in accordance with section 475.10 is allowed. 

(n)  It shall be unlawful to cause to be delivered indiscriminately door to door to residences, other than through the United 
States mail, any advertising, sample of merchandise, or promotional material which is contained in a plastic film outer 
bag any dimension of which exceeds 7 inches and which contains less than 1 hole, 1/2 inch in diameter, for each 25 
square inch area, or any samples of drugs, medicines, razor blades, or aerosol cans regardless of how packaged. 
This subdivision shall not apply to plastic bags with an average thickness of more than .0015 of an inch. 

(o) No person, firm or corporation shall bury any human body within the corporate limits of the city except in a public 
cemetery. 

(p)  No person, firm or corporation shall use any mechanical device, trap, or snare designed to capture any animal that will 
kill, injure or harmfully hold an animal including metal jaw type devices, but excluding devices designed to kill rats, 
mice, gophers or moles and excluding cage-type live traps. 

 
Subd. 2. Remedy. When there exists on private property a condition that is in violation of section 910.60, a notice to 
remove the offensive matter shall be served by the city council or its agent upon the owner, agent or occupant. Such 
notice may be served personally or may be served by mail. In all cases where such owner is not in the city or cannot be 
found therein, then notice shall be sent to the last known address. Such notice shall describe the matter to be removed 
and require the removal thereof within 10 days, including Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. If at the end of said 10 days 
following service of such notice, the offensive matter has not been removed the offender shall be subject to the process 
outlined in chapter 12 of this code book.” 



DRAFT 12-27-16 Greenwood Ordinance 267   |   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
SECTION 2. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2017. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _________, 2017 
Second reading: ________, 2017 
Publication by Summary Resolution 03-17: ________, 2017 
 
 



RESOLUTION 03-17 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLICATION  
OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 267 BY TITLE AND SUMMARY 

 
WHEREAS, on __________, 2017 the city council of the city of Greenwood adopted “Ordinance 267 to Clean Up 
Greenwood Ordinance Code Section 910.60 Regarding Prohibited Activities Affecting Health and / or Property.” 
 
WHEREAS, the city council has prepared a summary of ordinance 267 as follows: 
1. To address concerns regarding long-time storage of "Bagster" type containers, roll-off containers, etc, the following 

language has been added to section 910.60: Property owners engaging in clean-up projects or small construction 
projects that are not regulated by the construction site management ordinance (section 305) may maintain outdoor 
storage areas, outdoor garbage areas, large storage containers, and / or large garbage containers on site until the city 
clerk determines the areas and / or containers are no longer necessary. The storage / garbage areas and containers 
must be covered when not in use and containers must be emptied whenever they become full. 

2. The ordinance also deletes (g) “Privy vaults” from section 910.60, since the privy vaults (outhouses) are not allowed in 
the city, and deletes (p) since the city now prohibits traps in section 900.20. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD: 
1. The city council finds that the above title and summary of ordinance 267 clearly informs the public of intent and effect 

of the ordinance. 
2. The city clerk is directed to publish ordinance 267 by title and summary, pursuant to Minnesota statutes, section 

412.191, subdivision 4. 
3. A full copy of the ordinance is available at the Greenwood city office, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 

55331. 
 
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2017. 
 
____ AYES   ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor 
Attest: Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
First reading: _________, 2017 
Second reading: ________, 2017 
Publication by Summary Resolution 03-17: ________, 2017 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8B 

Agenda Date: 01-04-17 

Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Update of Ordinance Regarding Zoning Regulations Based on Lot Size 
 
Summary: Councilman Cook will present a verbal update at the 01-04-17 council meeting. 

Council Action: None required.  
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8C 

Agenda Date: 01-04-17 

Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Update Regarding Potential Locations of No-Parking Signs 
 
Summary: In recent months, the city has received the following no-parking sign requests ... 
 

1. A property owner on Sleepy Hollow Road contacted the city to report that 4-5 of his guests at a party were 
ticketed for parking on the street. Currently, no-parking signs are posted in random areas on both sides of Sleepy 
Hollow.  

 
2. A resident who lives on Fairview Street between Sleepy Hollow Road and the hard curve requested that 

permanent no-parking signs be posted in the same locations where temporary no-parking signs were posted 
during the construction project. 

 
3. A resident on Byron Circle requested that no-parking signs be installed on Minnetonka Blvd to improve pedestrian 

sight lines when crossing the street to access the LRT trail. 
 
At the 12-07-16 meeting, the council decided to continue the discussion of this topic to the 01-04-17 meeting to give the 
police chief and public works committee time to review and make recommendations to the city council. The public works 
committee will present a verbal update at the 01-04-17 meeting. 
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move that the city council approves the installation of no-parking signs in the following locations: 
 

A. __________________________________________________________________________________ 
B. __________________________________________________________________________________ 
C. __________________________________________________________________________________ 
D. __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I further move the city council directs the city's sign contractor to install the signs as soon as possible in the  
spring of 2017. 

 
2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 11A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects.  
 
Related documents are included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic version of the packet 
available at www.greenwoodmn.com.  
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



Variance with Variance with Bulk Email
Month 2015 2016 Prior Month Prior Year List
12/16 - 1/15 4,123 6,382 -360 2,259 156
1/16 - 2/15 3,928 7,209 827 3,282 156
2/16 - 3/15 3,732 6,741 -468 3,009 156
3/16 - 4/15 5,058 7,351 610 2,293 156
4/16 - 5/15 5,753 7,603 252 1,850 158
5/16 - 6/15 6,448 7,711 108 1,263 158
6/16 - 7/15 5,481 7,962 251 2,481 156
7/16 - 8/15 5,249 8,555 593 3,306 159
8/16 - 9/15 9,532 8,719 164 -813 159
9/16 - 10/15 6,969 10,528 1,809 3,559 160
10/16 - 11/15 6,362 11,261 733 4,899 160
11/16 - 12/15 6,742 12,647 1,386 5,905 160

AVERAGE 5,781 8,556

Gray indicates estimated numbers (average of month prior and month after)

POPULATION: 693
EMAIL ADDRESSES % OF POPULATION: 23.09%

Population source: www.metrocouncil.org, Data & Maps, Download Data, Population and Household Estimates
Population figure updated: 05-20-16

0 

2,000 

4,000 

6,000 

8,000 

10,000 

12,000 

14,000 

City	of	Greenwood	
Website	Total	Hits	

2015 

2016 



Content Tools Data Center Site Management Security

Welcome, Debra Kind | Hide QuickTips | Help | Logout

Live Site

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the
previous month. Statistics for the Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not
included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site while administering it
are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been
purged from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing
this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The
second report - Unique Visitors by Section - shows the total page views for each section
without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP addresses). For example, if
you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing
of that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only
lists sections that have had traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those
sections without traffic.

Begin Date 11/16/2016

End Date 12/15/2016

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 7232 57.18%

Agendas, Minutes, Meeting Packets 626 4.95%

RFPs & Bids 478 3.78%

Welcome to Greenwood 406 3.21%

City Departments 378 2.99%

Planning Commission 305 2.41%

Budget & Finances 236 1.87%

Assessments & Taxes 209 1.65%

Code Book of Ordinances 197 1.56%

Mayor & City Council 170 1.34%

Garbage & Recycling 146 1.15%

Elections, Voting 126 1%

Forms, Permits, Licenses 106 0.84%

Comp Plan & Maps 101 0.8%

Meetings 99 0.78%

Spring Clean-Up Day 99 0.78%

Watercraft Spaces 91 0.72%

Community Surveys 90 0.71%

Meetings on TV 88 0.7%

Agendas, Minutes, Meetings 87 0.69%

Photo Gallery 87 0.69%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 83 0.66%

Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 80 0.63%

St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 80 0.63%

73 0.58%

The reports offered in
your Site Statistics tool
only track activity on
the public side of your
site.

In each report, a section
named "Default" and a
section named "Home"
may appear.

A page view gets
attributed to "Default"
when a visitor to your
site types your URL into
his or her Web browser. 
In most cases, the
"Default" section is your
Home Page.

A page view gets
attributed to "Home"
each time a visitor clicks
the "Home" button on
your Web site.

In the Page View
(Default) report, only
sections with Web traffic
are reported and they
are listed in page view
order.

In the Page View by
Section report, sections
are listed in the order
they appear in the
navigation menu and
are reported regardless
of their traffic level.

In the Referrers report,
it is important to
remember that your
own site acts like a
referrer.  So, don't be
surprised if you see your
own Web address(es)
listed -- this tracks the
number of times people
went from one part of
your site to another.

Quick Tips

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=11%2F16%2F2016&EndDate=12%2F15%2F2016&report=0
http://help.avenet.net/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
http://www.greenwoodmn.com/?persistdesign=none
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B3BFA3AB3-AA76-4A00-8754-141DBE33C293%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B184AC25F-91BE-4826-A9F5-B388A80DC23E%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=11%2F16%2F2016&EndDate=12%2F15%2F2016&report=0#


Coyotes & Animal Services

Lake Minnetonka 73 0.58%

Southshore Center 67 0.53%

Sewer, Stormwater, Water, Garbage, Recycling 67 0.53%

Smoke Testing 64 0.51%

Well Water 62 0.49%

Public Safety Alerts 59 0.47%

Links 55 0.43%

Emergency Preparedness 53 0.42%

Email Sign-Up 51 0.4%

Old Log Events 51 0.4%

City Newsletters 47 0.37%

Search Results 43 0.34%

Finances, RFPs, Taxes, Assessments 42 0.33%

Fire Department 35 0.28%

Recreation, Amenities 34 0.27%

Tree Contractors 31 0.25%

Luck O' the Lake 30 0.24%

News, Events 29 0.23%

Tour de Tonka 28 0.22%

July 4th 28 0.22%

--- 22 0.17%

Sign up for City Emails 2 0.02%

Unsubscribe 1 0.01%

TOTAL 12647 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 1101 28.35%

City Departments 286 7.37%

Welcome to Greenwood 222 5.72%

Agendas, Minutes, Meeting Packets 182 4.69%

Mayor & City Council 106 2.73%

Planning Commission 105 2.7%

Code Book of Ordinances 103 2.65%

Assessments & Taxes 80 2.06%

Budget & Finances 76 1.96%

Comp Plan & Maps 70 1.8%

Elections, Voting 69 1.78%

Garbage & Recycling 68 1.75%

Community Surveys 62 1.6%

Forms, Permits, Licenses 60 1.55%

St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 59 1.52%

Watercraft Spaces 57 1.47%

Meetings 57 1.47%

Meetings on TV 56 1.44%

Agendas, Minutes, Meetings 55 1.42%

Photo Gallery 54 1.39%

RFPs & Bids 54 1.39%

Spring Clean-Up Day 51 1.31%

Coyotes & Animal Services 51 1.31%

Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 51 1.31%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 51 1.31%

Lake Minnetonka 47 1.21%

Southshore Center 46 1.18%

Sewer, Stormwater, Water, Garbage, Recycling 46 1.18%

Smoke Testing 45 1.16%

Emergency Preparedness 45 1.16%

Public Safety Alerts 42 1.08%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE4E6E072-F7DA-4CB1-A638-8915989F8078%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BD3D9ABB0-CC92-4C54-89F3-D3C8FC9DACA8%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B92C503B2-495E-4AB9-88DC-2432B12AC82B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8C357980-B476-4C47-A644-4438BBABA5FA%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE32365BF-D669-49D0-983D-2387DB8F6735%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE36FF7B9-855A-4B43-A3D3-268F500FEA36%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BCB8A0ECB-76AF-4FAD-B8AC-08ED37459E8B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B54847F9E-6D9F-405E-B61A-B242A5B61F4B%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BDC72D100-6B66-4675-AAD3-BCEA56CADF38%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B81865F8A-E58F-4546-80DA-616E969899AF%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B07F329B3-E4DB-4917-ABEE-96B4435790CB%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFBA50B9F-9AF7-4CC6-9D2D-09D56A461712%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B65CE4052-EA36-4AF3-8C80-B5E97F99187A%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA8FAE50E-D745-414D-8707-F9F9AAD99E95%7D&BeginDate=11/16/2016&EndDate=12/15/2016&report=1


Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Well Water 38 0.98%

Links 37 0.95%

Email Sign-Up 37 0.95%

Fire Department 32 0.82%

Old Log Events 30 0.77%

Finances, RFPs, Taxes, Assessments 30 0.77%

Recreation, Amenities 29 0.75%

City Newsletters 27 0.7%

Tree Contractors 27 0.7%

Search Results 26 0.67%

News, Events 26 0.67%

Luck O' the Lake 26 0.67%

Tour de Tonka 24 0.62%

July 4th 19 0.49%

--- 16 0.41%

Unsubscribe 1 0.03%

Sign up for City Emails 1 0.03%

TOTAL 3883 100%

Done

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement


  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: FYI 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: FYI Items in Council Packet 
  
Summary: The attached items are included in the council packet for the council's information (FYI) only. FYI items 
typically include planning commission minutes and other items of interest to the council. When the agenda is approved at 
the beginning of the meeting, any council member may request to move an FYI item to the regular agenda for further 
discussion. Moved items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda.  
  
Council Action: No council action is needed for FYI items. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 

 1 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Lucking called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Pat Lucking, Commissioners Lake Bechtell (arrived at 7:30), 

Jennifer Gallagher, Doug Reeder, and David Steingas 
 
Others Present: Council Liaison Bill Cook and Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney 

 
Absent: Commissioners Kristi Conrad and Fiona Sayer 

 
2. OATH OF OFFICE 
Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney administered the oath of office for new planning 
commissioners Jennifer Gallagher and David Steingas 
 
3. MINUTES – August 17, 2016 
Chairman Lucking moved to approve the minutes of August 17, 2016 as written. Commissioner 
Reeder seconded the motion. Motion carried 4-0.  
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
4a. Public hearing to consider the variance request of Roger Champagne for the property 
at 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard: Section 1120.20 Subd. 2(c) of the Greenwood Ordinance 
Codes states that primary accessory structures maximum combined floor space may not exceed 
60% of the total at-grade, main floor square footage of the principal structure. The applicant is 
proposing to exceed the maximum permitted accessory structure footprint by 150 square feet in 
order to build a new 676 square foot detached garage. 
 
Chairman Lucking introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing. 
 
Roger Champagne, applicant, said that there is a small garage on his property that is within the 
setback. He said that he moved into the house about two and a half years ago and that instead of 
putting a lot of effort into repairing the existing one-stall garage, he would like to build a new two-
car garage. Champagne said that he has a deck on his house, but if that were converted to living 
space, a variance would not be required. He said that he plans on living there for a long time and 
eventually he would build an addition, but that is not in his immediate plans. He said that the new 
garage would be pulled off of the lot line to be compliant with setback requirements and that it will 
be very nice when it is done. He said that he is retired and that he will build the garage himself 
and that the area is very flat and that no grading is required. Champagne said that the peak of the 
garage will only be 14 feet, 6 inches tall. He said that this will be a good improvement for the 
neighbors and the community. 
 
Gallagher asked if he had considered doing the remodel first and then a variance would not be 
required. Champagne said that it is significantly more expensive to do the remodel and he isn’t 
quite to that point yet. 
 
Gallagher asked if he had considered scaling down the garage so that a variance would not be 
needed. Champagne said that he wants a garage that will fit both his boat and his truck. He said 
that it is not worth his time to do the project if he cannot fit both vehicles in there, and that it would 
not be functional for his needs. 
 
Steingas said that in proportion to the lot the garage is not too big, but the house footprint is too 
small. Lucking agreed. 
 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 

 2 

Champagne said that he understands the intent of the ordinances for having oversized accessory 
structures, but that is not the case here. 
 
Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 
Reeder said that he thought it was a reasonable proposal. 
 
Gallagher said that the proposal makes sense, but that her only concern was the scale of the 
garage relative to the house. Lucking said that the structures are very far apart and that visually 
they will be two separate structures. 

Motion by Steingas to recommend approval of the variance request of Roger Champagne for the 
property at 21595 Minnetonka Boulevard, as presented, based on the recommendation, findings 
and conditions of staff. Motion was seconded by Reeder. Motion carried 4-0. 

  
5. NEW BUSINESS 

 
5a. Ordinance Regarding Zoning Regulations Based on Lot Size  
 
Council Liaison Cook led a discussion on the proposed ordinance changes. Cook said that the 
residential districts in the city are all only slightly different. He said that he is trying to unify the 
districts. He said that he is working on issues with smaller lots and what are people allowed to do 
on those lots. He said that reduced setbacks are reasonable on those types of lots. He said that 
having a 20 foot wide house is too narrow and that it is like living in a trailer home. He said that 
property owners should be able to build a 24 foot wide house on their smaller properties. He said 
that most small lots are 44 to 50 feet wide and that the remaining setbacks should just be what 
they are based on a 24 foot wide house. Cook said that he wants people to have an idea on what 
they might be able to do on a lot without going through the variance process. He said that he is 
considering different setback requirements based on lot size rather than zoning districts. 
 
Reeder said that people would get suspicious about the changes and how it might allow them to 
do less with their property. 
 
Cook said that he would have to make the case to the community. 
 
Steingas said that a person with a larger lot who has to be further back from the lot line might be 
impacted by a small lot where a house is closer to the lot line. He said that might not be fair. 
 
Cook said that his current house could only be two feet wide according to the ordinance. He said 
that someone who has a 150 foot wide lot would have no trouble meeting the ordinance, but the 
50 foot wide lots are problematic. He said that it is not a fairness question if someone has enough 
lot width to build the house of their dreams. 
 
Lucking asked if there were a 24 foot wide lot, could someone build a 24 foot wide house. 
 
Cook said that there would have to be some minimum setbacks to allow for drainage, eaves, and 
other issues. He said that he was thinking about a 6 foot minimum setback requirement for 
smaller lots. He said that the question is if someone owns a residential lot, are they entitled to 
build a residence on it. 
 
Steingas said that the lot is not buildable if you can’t comply with the zoning requirements and 
that the value is reflected in the lot. 
 
Cooney asked if Cook was proposing a minimum house footprint allowed, by rights, on the 
smaller lots, or if he was proposing variable setbacks based on lot size. 
 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 

 3 

Lucking said that most of these smaller lots will have other issues beyond setbacks and that they 
would likely need to come through the variance process regardless. 
 
Cook said that the variance process is intimidating. He said that he is not in favor of 
grandfathering existing hardcover because it is hard to know if it was done legally. He said that 
there should be a minimum allowable house where it makes sense. Cook said that he is not 
getting rid of the variance process, but allowing people to plan before they buy the lot. 
 
Lucking said that on a small lot, the property owner is entitled to the existing footprint, but that 
beyond that they would need to come in for a variance. 
 
Gallagher asked if there are many variance requests for hardcover and if they are frequently 
granted. Lucking said that is a tricky question since many people asking for hardcover variances 
are already over hardcover limits and come in asking for the same amount or less hardcover as 
existing, but still over the 30 percent limit. 
 
Cook said one other issue that concerns him is very narrow lots that are also large lots. He said 
that in these cases, you tend to get very tall, skinny, row houses. 
 
Lucking said that simplifying the code is a good thing if it can be executed properly. Cook said 
that he wants to avoid unintended consequences. 
 
6. LIAISON REPORT 
 
Council Liaison Bill Cook said that he does not have a further liaison report other than to state 
that Kristi Conrad will be the council liaison beginning in 2017.  
 
7. ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Bechtell to adjourn the meeting. Steingas seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 
 
Respectively Submitted, 
Dale Cooney - Zoning Administrator 


	2017 01-04 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	2016 12-07 Minutes
	2016 12-22 Special Meeting Minutes
	December Payables Check Register
	December Payables for Council Approval
	January Payroll Check Register
	November Cash Summary
	November CD Report.xls
	Res 01-17 Dates.xlsx
	Res 02-17 Appointments
	Res 04-17 Recycling Grant Agreement 2017-2020
	Residential Recycling Funding Policy 2017-2020 Final
	I. Policy Description
	A. Background
	B. Term of the Policy
	C. Grant Agreements
	D. Fund Distribution

	II. Recycling
	A. Allocation of Funds
	B. Application for Funding
	C. Use of Funds
	D. City Requirements
	1. Materials Accepted
	2. Education and Outreach
	3. Recycling Performance

	E. Grant Payments

	III. Organics Recycling
	A. Allocation of Funds
	B. Application for Funds
	C. Use of Funds
	D. Education and Outreach Requirements
	E. Reporting
	F. Grant Payment


	Residential Recycling Grant Agreement
	- MEMO
	- Staff Report
	21595 Minnetonka Survey
	21595 Mtka Attachments
	Res 05-17 21595 Minnetonka Variance Findings
	- MEMO Section 910.60 Clean Up
	Ord 267 Section 910.60 Clean Up Redlined
	Res 03-17 Summary Ord 267
	- MEMO Small Lot Ordinance
	- MEMO No-Parking Signs
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	2016 12-15 Web Chart.xls
	2016 12-15 Web Report
	- MEMO FYI no date
	Dec PC Minutes 2016

